TORPOINT TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES of a meeting of Torpoint Town Council held on Thursday 19th January 2017 at 7.00pm in the Council Committee Room, 1-3 Buller Road, Torpoint.

PRESENT: - Town Mayor (Councillor M J Crago), Deputy Town Mayor (Councillor L E Keise), Councillors E H Andrews, Mrs. K Brownhill, G J Davis, Mrs. C E Goodman, B Hobbs, Mrs. C A Jackson, Mrs. J M Martin, M N Pearn MBE, Mrs. R A Southworth, and J Tivnan plus the Town Clerk with the Deputy Town Clerk in attendance.

	ACTION
139-16 Apologies for absence:- Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the J F Creek, A P Glanville and Miss R A Tanner BEM.	
140-16 Declarations of Interest relating to items on the Agenda:- None.	
141-16 Minutes of the previous meeting:- The minutes of the previous meeting held on Thursday 15 th December 2016 were taken as read, confirmed and signed by the Chairman with the deletion of the word Enterprise and insertion of the word Operation in minute 127-16.	
a) Duchy Moorings:- Pursuant to minute 126-16(a) Councillor Hobbs reported proposals had been sent to Plymouth City Council that it is hoped will be accepted. Councillor Hobbs explained the charging mechanisms for boats based on the vessels length although he ventured that the estimated number of boats being moored appeared to be inconsistent. Councillor Hobbs also raised the issue of vacant moorings. Following the address it was resolved that this item would no longer be placed on the agenda and would only be considered if progress is being made to conclude this matter. b) Minutes of the Coastal Community Team Advisory Committee:- Pursuant to minute 126-16 (c) Councillor G J Davis reported that although there is no progress to report the outstanding forms for Companies House have been completed and submitted. Councillor Davis was confident this matter should be concluded in the next month. c) Cornwall Council report (Plymouth City Bus Routes):- Pursuant to minute 126-16 (d) the Clerk reported receipt of a letter from the Managing Director of City Bus in reply to this Council's letter on the issue of the discontinued direct bus to the city centre via Union Street. The Managing Director spoke of the "financial disaster" of operating the 71A service and this route will not be repeated. The letter continued by explaining an unacceptable gap in the 32 timetable would be left if a direct peak time route was given. The letter observed that the "unpalatable truth" is that Torpoint services need the passengers on the Plymouth side of the river to help cover the costs. The letter was noted. Councillor B Hobbs explained the current direct routes into Union Street observing that a return trip would leave the passengers in Park Avenue having to negotiate Ferry Hill as a pedestrian. Councillor G J Davis reminded members that Cornwall Council were working toward an integrated transport system and urged the Council to press the case for Torpoint. Councillor Mrs. R A Southworth advised that a meeting of the Torpoint and Ra	GJD

Users Group was scheduled to meet on the 24th January and would be asking how many complaints had been received from the Plymouth side of the river. Councillor Mrs. Southworth suggested that the Cornwall Councillors for the area might wish to attend. After further deliberation it was **resolved** that the Managing Director of Plymouth City Bus would be invited to address this Council on bus service provision between Torpoint and Plymouth.

Clerk

d) Minutes of the AMO Committee (Bus Shelters):-

Pursuant to minute 136 -16 the Clerk updated members on the proposed deed of termination from Clear Channel including the deed of gift of the 13 bus shelters and proposals from this Council to onward gift the shelters to Cornwall Council following information on the proposed integrated transport system as part of the devolution package from central government to Cornwall Council. The Clerk informed the meeting that as a result of the original agreement signed in 1981 and the variation in 2000, the owners of the Shelters could remove them within 6 months of the deed of termination. The Clerk suggested that the council should protect the shelters by signing the Deed of Termination and simultaneously arranging for the onward gifting of the shelters to Cornwall Council. It was acknowledged that there is likely to be a small hiatus between accepting the gift transferring the asset to Cornwall Council but it is understood that Cornwall Council will undertake any maintenance of the shelters during this period. After further consideration and discussion by the Council it was **resolved**

Clerk/ Mayor

- i) That the Town Clerk and Town Mayor are authorised by this Council to sign the Deed of Termination.
- ii) That the Town Clerk arranges the necessary insurance during the period between signing the Deed of Termination and onward gift of the shelters to Cornwall Council.
- iii) That the Clerk enters into an agreement with Cornwall Council to gift the shelters to this authority.

143-16 Mayor's Communications

Friday 16th December - Tina and I attended the concert by the Ladies Singers. Sunday 25th December - Tina and I attended the Carbeile Junior School where lunches were served for those who were spending Christmas Day alone. The Mayor expressed thanks to those that had volunteered to for giving up their day to provide the lunches and to Carbeile Junior School for making the school available and hosting the event.

The Mayor also attended the funeral of former Councillor Peter Ralph. The Mayor observed that the funeral was well attended and gave a brief history of Mr Ralph's involvement with the town. Apart from his time as an active Town Councillor, he was a member of the Chamber of Commerce and a well-respected businessman. The Mayor remarked that he has received good reports and praise for the Town Council Enforcement Officer. It was noted that training is being considered for the other Caretaker so that not only is there cover for holidays and other absences but there could be an opportunity to expand the service if the council so desired. Other matters included the use of covert CCTV to catch those that allowed dogs to defecate without removing it and also engaged in illegal fly tipping. Receipt was reported of a letter addressed to the Mayor from Torpoint Community College drawing attention to the threat to college including the possibility of the future viability principally as a result to changes to the school funding formula. Other possible contributory factors included demographics and the geographical location. The Mayor voiced concern at the possible ramifications to residents especially students in the town and it was resolved that the Town Mayor, Cornwall Councillors B Hobbs and M N Pearn together with Councillor J Tivnan and the Town Clerk would meet with representatives of the Community College to discuss this matter together with any support that the Town Council can give. The Town Clerk was asked to arrange a mutually convenient time to meet.

Clerk

	I
 144-16 Planning Applications a) PA16/03215/PREAPP – Police Station, Ferry Street, Torpoint – Pre-application advice for the demolition of existing station and development comprises new community police station and 10 residential apartments and associated parking. Councillor G J Davis addressed the Council on issues that he suggested appeared to conflict with the emerging Neighbourhood Development Plan. Councillor Davis conceded that he did not have all the information available and confirmed he would email the finalised text to all members of the Council. 	GJD
 b) PA16/11666 – 12, Windsor Terrace, King Street Torpoint – Construction of first floor balcony to front elevation and conversion of existing rear flat to decked terrace with external steel access stairs. No objections or observations. 	
 c) PA16/11676 – 98. Carbeile Road, Torpoint – Proposed single storey front bedroom extension. No objections or observations. 	
 d) PA16/11954 – Rear of 12, Fore Street, Torpoint – Conversion and extension of building to form a 1 bedroomed dwelling. No objections or observations. 	
e) PA17/00075 – 48.Maker Road, Torpoint – Single Storey rear and side extension. No objections or observations.	
145-16 Minutes of the Coastal Community Team It was resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 11 th January 2017 (as circulated) are received. As a result of the late receipt of the minutes it was further resolved that consideration of the minutes are deferred until the next meeting of the Council.	
 146-16 Report from the Systems and Procedures Working Party ▶ It was resolved that the report of the meeting held on Monday 9th January (as circulated) is received and the recommendations relating to the future intentions of this Council toward the Neighbourhood Development Plan Steering Group and the Coastal Community Team Advisory Committee are adopted and implemented. After further consideration of the report the Council resolved to adopt and implement the following suggestions:- ▶ That the Committee structure status quo remains with the three Standing Committees 	
 (detailed above) continuing. That the Asset Management and Operation Committee is moved to the Thursday following the Council meeting (the current meeting date for the Development and Localism Committee meeting) and that the Development and Localism Committee meets on the date vacated by the Asset Management and Operations Committee. That the quorum for Committees is reduced from the current level of half the membership to that of four or 1/3 whichever is larger. Whilst the Working Party recognise that the 	

That the quorum for Committees is reduced from the current level of half the membership to that of four or 1/3 whichever is larger. Whilst the Working Party recognise that the number of members serving on each Committee should not be restricted, it is suggested that Committee membership should not exceed 12. It is also suggested that the Council discontinue the practice of allowing substitutes given the probable reduction in the Council quorum.

[The amendments above will now be included in Standing Orders to become operative

following the February meeting of this Council]. Council > That the terms of reference for each Committee is reviewed prior to April to enable the terms to be concluded at the Annual meeting of the Council in May. > That cost centre budgets are allocated to individual committees (the Budget Monitoring Policy refers) and therefore Committees become accountable and responsible for spend against budget. This matter was referred the Finance and Personnel Committee for further F&P consideration. Comm. That the August Council meeting is re-instated. That the Council as the employer (via the Finance and Personnel Committee) review application of the appraisal system within the Pay and Conditions and other relevant F&P policies for consistency and to ensure staff have equal and fair treatment and Comm. opportunities. 147-16 **Financial Comparison** It was **resolved** that the December 2016 financial comparison (as circulated) is received and

It was **resolved** that the December 2016 financial comparison (as circulated) is received and adopted. It was reported that the Deputy Town Clerk has reviewed the income and expenditure and confirmed the financial comparison as being accurate. It was further **resolved** that Councillors G J Davis and J Tivnan would become authorised bank signatories and the Deputy Town Clerk would make the necessary arrangements to implement this arrangement.

DTC

148-16 Accounts for payment

PAYEE	REASON	GROSS	(VAT)	NETT
Cornwall Council	Salary/Mayors Allowance Oct-Dec 2016	28,974.53	36.00	28,938.53
Waterwise	Toilet Seat and Hinge Pack	42.67	7.11	35.56
Waterwise	Urinal Electronic Timer and Valve	135.00	22.50	112.50
Mrs C M Southworth	Practioners Conf (Travel/Accomod)	480.30	0.00	480.30
British Telecom	Telephone	34.08	5.68	28.40
SSE	Electricity Supply	837.73	139.62	698.11
Rabart Decorators	Brush Set	20.58	3.43	17.15
Don Benson	Clock Winding	28.00	0.00	28.00
Clear Sight	Window Cleaner	60.00	0.00	60.00
BIFFA	Wheelie Bin	101.66	16.94	84.72
SW Water	Public Conveniences (Antony Rd)	145.50	10.37	135.13
EE/T Mobile	Telephone (Direct Debit)	60.00	10.00	50.00
DDC CRC	Probation Team (December)	448.00	74.67	373.33
ITEC	Photocopies	19.50	3.25	16.25
British Telecom	Telephone Invoices	652.64	108.77	543.87
ITEC	Photocopier Lease (Direct Debit)	189.42	31.57	157.85
M Acton	Laundry	61.00	0.00	61.00

149-16 Correspondence

a) SCOPE – House to House Collections. Noted.

b) Vanity Rooms – Occupancy Information (as circulated by emails). Noted. It was further **resolved** that this matter is taken with the public and press omitted from the meeting as a result of the confidential nature of the business to be discussed (Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings Act) 1960 part 1 para 2).

- c) Cornwall Council Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Consultation. Noted.
- d) C Evans Footpath 1 Request for a gate.

Noted. The Clerk briefed members on the request and confirmed that this was an infrastructure matter and therefore Cornwall Council's responsibility. The Clerk has responded to the resident acknowledging the letter, detailing the process and also copied in Cornwall Councillor M N Pearn the ward member for the area. Councillor Pearn commented that he has been in contact with both Cornwall Council and the local landowner who has replied favourably in not objecting to a gate subject to conditions. Cornwall Council has not yet replied. Members were also reminded that dogs should be kept on leads especially approaching the busy A374.

MNP

150-16 Reports

a) Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group.

It was **resolved** that the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 16th January 2017 are received but as a result of late receipt would not be considered until the next meeting of this Council. It was further resolved that the late receipt of the December minutes of the Steering Group would also be referred to the February meeting of the Council. However because of the pressing need to consult on the draft Neighbourhood Development Plan, it was resolved to delegate to the Development and Localism Committee consideration of the draft plan and to offer it for consultation.

b) Cornwall Council:-

Councillor B Hobbs reported that he has received assurances from Cornwall Council that the drains in the town would be cleared within the next 4 -6 weeks. Councillor G J Davis drew attention to the deteriorating condition of the signage on the "Queens Park Estate" in the town. The estate had been built as local authority housing during the tenure of the Torpoint Urban District Council and very little had been done to the signage since the estate had been erected and completed. Councillor Davis suggested that the signage should be refurbish to not only improve aesthetics but also to protect the heritage of the area. Attention was also drawn to trees that had been felled on the estate. Councillor Hobbs confirmed that he would contact the relevant department in Cornwall Council to request the signs are refurbished and that the felled trees are replaced.

BH

Councillor M N Pearn advised the Council that interest had been expressed by an outside body on the tennis courts and hut in Thanckes park and as a result any future negotiations are likely to be delayed as a result. Councillor Pearn also reminded those that intended to become candidates at the next Town and Cornwall Council elections in May 2017 that the "Period of Purdah" commences on March 20th 2017. Councillor Pearn then addressed the problems of the breakdown on the Lynher Ferry as a result of a broken chain. Councillor Pearn informed the meeting that the cause was an issue of a "hairline" fracture of with one of the links. Councillor

Pearn then presented the ferry report:-

WEEK COMM	DAY AND DATE	FERRY	IMPACT ON SERVICE	SCHEDULED SERVICE	REASON	OVERALL EFFICIENCY %
12/12/2016	Saturday 17 th December	Lynher	26	1292	Broken Chain	98.0
	Monday 19 th December	Lynher	30			
	Tuesday 20 th December	Lynher	30			
19/12/2016	Wednesday 21 st December	Lynher	30		Broken Chain	
	Thursday 22 nd December	Lynher	30	1292		92.0
		Plym	2		Vacon Drive	
					Belt	

26/12/2012	Friday 30 th December	Plym	10	1292	Vacon Drive Belt	99.2	
02/01/2017	Thursday 5 th January	Tamar	7	1292	Loose Segment Bolts	99.5	
	Thursday 12 th January	Lynher	2		Bad Weather		
ļ	·	Plym	16		Vacon Defect		
09/01/2017	Friday 13 th January	Lynher	2	1292	Bad Weather 98.3	98.3	
	Saturday 14 th January	Tamar	2		Drive Cabinet Leak		
Overall avai	lability 98.8% Target 9	9%		I	Cabillet Leak		
time to constitute to constitu	ninutes of the meeting laider these in depth. For osals from the TTP for er had not been considented at the Asset Manamendation presented as noted that this Count nual event in the town ism), plus any surplus force toward support of the role of the TTP. Prior matter was delegated to rols on behalf of the Count of the count of the toward and approved by procedure for procuring ewithin the Financial R with the above conditionary Town Clerk (in conjurement and securement in the count of the toward securement of the toward securement and securement in the toward securement and securement in the toward securement in the toward that Torpoint should lat the Council would write allable given the paucit from Delegates to outside the count of the part meeters.	llowing disthis Councered by the agement Council to Council had allow (LGA 1976) from this year to release to the Finar uncil to incere to the Common or securing and the Common to the grail for the grail for the entation with the council to the grail for the grail for the grail for the grail for the entation to sibility of have facility of the grail for the grail	cussions it is purched to purched to purched to purched to mittee to accoming services and Best in place, of the "Tour ties in place to accoming to accoming to accoming the topurched topurched the topurched top	t was resolve lase a Gazebo land that the last of considerate 2000 in the 2001 144 — power of the was noted the lances by this ersonnel Composition of the TTP for the lances of the TTP for the lances of the last of last the budgeting of the Consist the Budgeting of the	ed:- o: - It was noted proposal should ation and a 17-18 budget to to contribute to eld as an "allocated as an "allocated as an it was mittee to imples the event and it consideration is to the same sent of this Coural elegation is given priate) to effect ompliance with the event being bid progress. It car parking face	d that this I be o support of encourage ated" ould be resolved ment is standards of incil. In to the cit the cit the cit the cit the cit is said and in the cit	AMO Comm
	Date of next meet 5 th February 2017.	ing					
152-16	Exclusion of the P	ublic and	Press				
It was reso the meeting Bodies (Adm	lved that the meeting sas the items to be disconission to Meetings Act) nutes. (Minute 149-16 (stand adjo cussed rela 1960 part	urned and ted to con (1 para 2)	nmercially ser . The confide	nsitive matter (I	Public	

M 1' 0' 1 10 20		
Meeting Closed at 9.20pm	Mayor	
OPEI	N FORUM	
None.		